

**VETERINARY TECHNICIAN NATIONAL EXAMINATION (VTNE) and  
ALTERNATE ROUTE PROGRAM APPROVAL  
Proposed Regulatory Changes -10/2012**

**DRAFT**

**➔§ 2002. Definitions.**

For the purposes of the rules and regulations contained in this chapter, the term “board” means the Veterinary Medical Board; ~~the term “committee” means the Registered Veterinary Technician Committee;~~ the term “code” means the Business and Professions Code, and the term “client” means any person for whom veterinary medical services are performed or to whom veterinary medical products or services are sold or provided.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4800 and 4832, Business and Professions Code.

**➔§ 2010. Application.**

(a) An application for eligibility evaluation for the California State Board examination shall be submitted to the board at its principal place of business on an application form and pursuant to instructions prescribed and provided by the board, (Veterinary Application, Form No. 25A-1, Rev. 9/2010; Veterinary Application Instructions, Rev. 9/2010), accompanied by such evidence, statements, or documents as therein required. The Board shall complete the eligibility evaluation and notify the candidate of eligibility and/or status.

Once eligibility is established, the candidate will be authorized to take the computer based examination. If an applicant fails their first scheduled examination, the applicant must reapply by submitting to the board required application forms and fees.

(b) An application for the registered veterinary technician examination shall be submitted on an application form and pursuant to instructions prescribed and provided by the board, (Registered Veterinary Technician Application, Form No. 26A-1, Rev. 9/2010; Registered Veterinary Technician Application Instructions, Rev. 9/2010), accompanied by such evidence, statements, or documents as therein required. The Board shall complete the eligibility evaluation and notify the candidate of eligibility and/or status.

Once eligibility is established, the candidate will be authorized to take the computer based registered veterinary technician national examination (VTNE) and the California RVT Law Exam. If an applicant fails their first scheduled examination, the applicant must reapply by submitting to the board required application forms and fees.

**➔§ 2010.1. Eligibility Evaluation - National Examination.**

All applicants applying for eligibility evaluation for the national examination for licensure as a veterinarian shall submit an application and required supporting documents to the American Association of Veterinary State Boards (AAVSB).

(a) Applicants from an AVMA accredited college of veterinary medicine must submit proof of senior status and of being within eight months of graduation.

(b) Applicants from a veterinary college not recognized by the Board shall submit supporting documents to substantiate either:

1. certificate of completion of the Educational Commission for Foreign Veterinary Graduates program (ECFVG) or
2. certificate of completion of the Program for Assessment of Veterinary Education Equivalence (PAVE).

(c) Upon the determination of an applicant's eligibility for the national examination, the AAVSB shall notify the applicant of his or her eligibility to take the national examination and transmit the applicant's eligibility information to the National Board Examination Committee or its authorized representative.

(d) All applicants with current and valid eligibility on file with the AAVSB may make proper application to the National Board of Veterinary Medical Examiners or its authorized representative for the national examination.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4846.1 and 4848, Business and Professions Code.

**➔§ 2010.4 2. Eligibility Evaluation - National Veterinary Technician Examination.**

(a) Upon the determination of an applicant's eligibility for the national veterinary technician examination, the California Veterinary Medical Board (CVMB) shall notify the candidate and the American Association of Veterinary State Boards (AAVSB) of the applicant's eligibility to take the national examination and transmit the applicant's eligibility information to the AAVSB or its authorized representative.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4846.1 and 4848, Business and Professions Code.

**➔§ 2014.1 Veterinary Technician Licensing Examination.**

(a) The registered veterinary technician licensing examination shall consist of a national veterinary technician examination and a California law examination.

(b) Subject to the provisions of section 2015, every applicant who obtains a passing score determined by the Angoff criterion-referenced method of establishing the pass point in the national examination shall be deemed to have passed the national veterinary technician examination. Such a passing score may vary moderately with changes in test composition.

(c) Every applicant who obtains a passing score determined by the Angoff criterion-referenced method of establishing the pass point on the national veterinary technician examination and on the California law examination shall be deemed to have passed the California state board veterinary technician examination. Such a passing score may vary moderately with changes in test composition.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 4848, Business and Professions Code.

**➔§ 2015. Examinations Credit.**

(a) An applicant for licensure as a veterinarian who passes the national examination, the California state board examination and the veterinary law examination within the sixty month period immediately following the date of the administration of the initial examination receiving a passing score shall be deemed to have met the examination requirements for licensure.

(b) Where an applicant for licensure as a veterinarian fails to pass the national examination, the California state board examination, and the veterinary law examination within the specified sixty month period, the applicant shall be required to retake and pass all those examinations.

(c) An applicant for registration as a registered veterinary technician (RVT) who passes the national veterinary technician examination, the California ~~state board~~ law examination for RVTs within the sixty month period immediately following the date of the administration of the initial examination receiving a passing score shall be deemed to have met the examination requirements for registration.

~~(e)~~ (d) Any applicant who has failed an examination or who has failed to pass all required examinations within the specified 60 month period may apply to be re-examined at a subsequent examination.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 135 and 4848, Business and Professions Code.

**➔§ 2015.1. Substantially Similar Examinations; Conditional Credit.**

a) An applicant who has taken the national examination out of state and has achieved a score on such examination at least equal to the score required to pass the national examination under Section 2014, shall receive conditional credit for that examination.

(b) Applicants receiving conditional examination credit in accordance with this section shall complete the national examination, the California state board examination, and the veterinary law examination within the sixty month period immediately following the date of the examination for which conditional credit has been granted. Where the remaining

examinations are passed within the specified time, the applicant shall be deemed to have met the examination requirements for licensure.

(c) Where an applicant, specified in this section, fails to pass the national examination, the California state board examination, and the veterinary law examination within the specified time, the board shall withdraw all conditional examination credit granted during this period and the applicant shall be required to retake and pass all those examinations.

(d) RVT A applicants receiving conditional examination credit in accordance with this section shall complete the national veterinary technician examination, and the California ~~state board law~~ examination, and the veterinary law examination within the sixty month period immediately following the date of the examination for which conditional credit has been granted. Where the remaining examinations are passed within the specified time, the applicant shall be deemed to have met the examination requirements for ~~licensure~~ registration.

(c) Where an RVT applicant, specified in this section, fails to pass the national veterinary technician examination, and the California ~~state board law~~ examination, ~~and the veterinary law~~ examination within the specified time, the board shall withdraw all conditional examination credit granted during this period and the applicant shall be required to retake and pass all those examinations.

### ➡§ 2015.2 3. Veterinary Technician Law Examination.

(a) The veterinary technician law examination shall be administered by the California Veterinary Medical Board via the computer.

(b) Notwithstanding section 2010, an application to take the veterinary technician law examination may be submitted at any time the applicant has met the requirements, in accordance with these regulations, to take such examination.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 4848, Business and Professions Code.

### ➡§ 2071. Application, Registration and Renewal Fees for Registered Veterinary Technicians.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4842.5 of the code, the following fees are fixed by the board for licensing periods beginning on or after March 1, 2012:

(a) The application eligibility review fee for the ~~registered~~ veterinary technician examination shall be \$125.00.

~~(b) The fee for the registered veterinary technician examination shall be \$175.00.~~

(b) The fee for the veterinary technician law examination shall be \$50.

(c) The initial registration fee for registrations issued for one year or more from the date on which it will expire shall be \$140.00. The initial registration fee for registrations issued for less than one year shall be \$70.00.

(d) The biennial renewal fee shall be \$140.00.

(e) The delinquency fee shall be \$25.00.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4808, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 4842.5, Business and Professions Code.